
Federal Communications Commission 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

August 24,2010 

Karen Majcher, 
Vice President, High-Cost and Low Income Division 
Universal Service Administrative Company 
2000 L St., N.W., Suite 200 
Washington, DC 20036 

Dear Ms. Majcher: 

This letter confirms that the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) should adjust 
the interim cap on high-cost universal service support for competitive eligible 
telecommunications carriers (ETCs) as described below. 

As you are aware, the Commission adopted an interim cap on the amount of high-cost universal 
service support that competitive ETCs may receive.' Pursuant to the Interim Cap Order, "annual 
support for competitive ETCs in each state will be capped at a level of support that competitive 
ETCs in that state were eligible to receive during March 2008, on an annualized ba~is . "~  The 
Interim Cap Order became effective on August 1, 2008.3 

Since the Interim Cap Order was adopted, the Wireline Competition Bureau (Bureau) has 
worked with USAC to finalize the interim cap amount. On December 5, 2008, USAC posted an 
initial report of the interim cap amount on its website. The Bureau released a Public Notice 
indicating that competitive ETCs should confilm the interim cap amount infomation on the 
website with USAC and file any corrections on or before December 3 1, 2008.4 However, the 
amount that competitive ETCs were "eligible to receive during March 2008" could not be 
finalized until the actual cost, revenue, and line count data on which true-ups for the Local 
Switching Support (LSS) and Interstate Common Line Support (ICLS) mechanisms for that time 
period had been filed. Carriers were required to file the actual data on which the true-ups are 
calculated with USAC on December 3 1, 2009.5 With additional time required to validate the 
actual data, USAC could not make the calculations to finalize the ICLS and LSS amounts until 
the spring of 201 0. 

1 High-Cost Universal Service Support; Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service, WC Docket No. 05-337, 
CC Docket No. 96-45, Order, 23 FCC Rcd 8834 (2008) (Interim Cap Order). 
2 Id., at 8837 para. 5, 8850 para. 38. 

High-Cost Universal Service Support; Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service, 73 Fed. Reg. 37882 (July 
2,2008). 
4 See USAC High-Cost website (Dec. 5,2008), http://usac.org/hc/tools/latest-news/default.aspx#120508a and 
http://usac.org/~res/documents/hc/x1s/CETC%20Cap%20%20March%202008%20Base1ine%20Repo%20 11-25- 
0 8 . ~ 1 ~ .  
5 47 C.F.R. Ij$ 54.301(e), 54.903(a)(4). 
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Now that these steps have been completed, USAC should adjust the interim cap. Specifically, 
USAC should implement the adjustments indicated in the attached tables, which show: (a) errors 
in the initial March 2008 calculations identified by competitive ETCs; (b) errors in the initial 
March 2008 calculations identified by USAC; (c) the impact of waivers granted by the Bureau 
during 2008 and 2009; and (d) true-ups of the LS S and ICLS mechanisms. 

USAC should implement the revised interim cap as soon as it is administratively feasible to do 
so. Because this adjusted interim cap amount establishes "the level of support that competitive 
ETCs ... were eligible to receive during March 2008," USAC should conduct true-ups to ensure 
that competitive ETCs receive the correct amount of high-cost universal service support for the 
entire period since the effective date of the Interim Cap Order. 

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please do not hesitate to contact me at 202-41 8- 
1500. 

Sincerely, 

Sharon Gillett 
Chief 
Wireline Competition Bureau 
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